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          1  COMMITTEE ON CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: Good morning, my

          3  name is Jose Serrano and I'm the Chair of the

          4  Cultural Affairs, Libraries And International

          5  Intergroup Relations Committee.

          6                 Thank you for joining us today for

          7  this preliminary budget -- preliminary public

          8  hearing on proposed resolution 549-A regarding

          9  possible military action by the United States toward

         10  Iraq.

         11                 This is an issue of great importance

         12  and the Committee welcomes and looks forward to

         13  hearing from you today, particularly because this is

         14  an issue of such significance and concern to the

         15  citizens of this city.  It is critical that this

         16  hearing provide a forum for the expression of the

         17  diverse and varied perspectives on this issue.

         18                 Toward that end, and in the interest

         19  of hearing from as many of you as possible during

         20  the time allocated for this hearing, which will

         21  conclude no later than 12:30 p.m. due to the full

         22  City Council stated meeting taking place at 1:00, we

         23  ask that each witness limit his or her remarks to

         24  only two minutes.

         25                 If you have not already done so and
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          2  you wish to testify, please see the Sargeant at Arms

          3  to sign up. Before opening the floor to testimony, I

          4  would like to recognize my colleagues and fellow

          5  committee members.  To my left, not a member of the

          6  Committee but the Deputy Majority Leader Bill

          7  Perkins from Manhattan; Gale Brewer from Manhattan;

          8  Council Member Eric Gioia from Queens; Council

          9  Member Domenic Recchia, Member of the Committee;

         10  Council Member Tracy Boyland, who is a member of the

         11  Committee; and Council Member Christine Quinn.

         12                 Before I call up the first panel, I

         13  would like to give the sponsor of this resolution,

         14  Bill Perkins, the opportunity to say a few words.

         15                 Council Member.

         16                 MR. PERKINS:  Thank you very much,

         17  Chairman Serrano. I'm going to be brief because I

         18  know we have a lot of folks out there that want to

         19  share with us their feelings about this very, very

         20  important matter.

         21                 First, I want to thank you for the

         22  leadership that you provided as a Chair of this

         23  Committee and in helping the Council navigate

         24  through this resolution.

         25                 I want to take a moment to thank

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  those folks in the community and the public at large

          3  for making their voices heard to this body, it is

          4  because of what has happened without that we are

          5  moving forward within and I know that my colleagues

          6  have shared the fact that they have received

          7  numerous e-mails and phone calls, etc. One of them

          8  most recently reported having received 700 e-mails

          9  just yesterday.

         10                 So we know that there is a lot of

         11  concern in the community out there and we're trying

         12  to be very responsive to that, as well as responsive

         13  to the concerns of our very diverse city and very

         14  diverse City Council, and so were moving, I think,

         15  quite effectively towards coming to a majority

         16  concensus around a resolution that I think will

         17  properly represent the interests of the people of

         18  the City of New York.

         19                 In fact, at this moment we're

         20  confidant that we have a majority of the members and

         21  we're looking for a greater majority such that when

         22  we do vote for it we will be even more sure that

         23  this body is united with regard to the resolution.

         24                 I want to take a moment and express

         25  my appreciation to several of my colleagues, Gale
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          2  Brewer, Bill DeBlasio, and others, in particular,

          3  who have been very helpful in attempting to

          4  negotiate and help fashion a resolution that makes

          5  sense for the people of the City of New York.

          6                 And last, but not least, I want to

          7  thank the Speaker, who has provided leadership in

          8  helping us get through this, as well.  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you

         11  Council Member.  I'd like to call up the first --

         12  witness -- the first panel.

         13                 Michael Ratner from the Center for

         14  Constitutional Rights.  Esther Moroze. Lawrence

         15  Moss.  Jessie Cagan from United for Peace and

         16  Justice. Lawrence Moss.

         17                 MR. MOSS:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Please keep in

         19  mind that if you have especially long testimony,

         20  that you can submit written testimony and it will

         21  become part of the permanent record.  If you feel

         22  that you need to abbreviate your oral testimony due

         23  to the time.

         24                 You may begin.  Turn on, press the

         25  button.
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          2                 MR. RATNER:  Sorry, okay.  Good

          3  morning.  My name is Michael Ratner.  I'm the

          4  President of the Center for Constitutional Rights in

          5  New York City and I'm a teacher of International

          6  Human Rights Law at Columbia Law School.  I'm

          7  pleased to be here to testify this morning on behalf

          8  of a Council bill that will express New Yorker's and

          9  this Council's opposition to the War in Iraq.  I

         10  consider it one of the most important resolutions,

         11  if not the most important resolution that this

         12  Council can be considering right now.  I want New

         13  York to be able to join the hundred of other cities

         14  in this country and to join the International Peace

         15  Movement that is against this War.  The Center has

         16  taken a very strong position against the legality of

         17  any War with Iraq.  We've written a booklet which

         18  I've given to everybody called "Against the War With

         19  Iraq", and we feel that this War is completely

         20  unjustified. I'm going to give you some of our

         21  reasons in this two minutes that I have.  First,

         22  there is no need for this War.  Right now there is

         23  no evidence that Iraq is a threat or an imminent

         24  threat to anybody in the United States or even to

         25  any neighboring countries.  There is no evidence
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          2  that they have nuclear weapons which was the

          3  original justification that President Bush said --

          4  some year -- over a year ago, there is no evidence

          5  that there's any weapons of other weapons of

          6  chemical or biological nature in Iraq.  While there

          7  are some questions that the Iraqi inspection people

          8  want to find answers to, at this point there is no

          9  evidence.  Secondly, and I think very critically and

         10  I want to see any resolution passed by this

         11  Committee to contain a requirement that there should

         12  be no War without the explicit consent of the

         13  Security Council of the United Nations.  I just

         14  think any resolution has to have at a minimum that

         15  in it.  Otherwise, what we're talking about

         16  essentially here is a war crime if the United States

         17  goes to war either when it's not in self- defense

         18  and no one argues that this is self- defense, or

         19  without that explicit authority.  So I am here to

         20  say really that its that its -- is that my two

         21  minutes or no -- that any resolution has to at a

         22  minimum have that in it.  As I said a war by the

         23  United States against Iraq without that authority is

         24  a war crime and its the kind of war crime that is

         25  the most serious war crime, it's the kind of war
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          2  crime that people were tried for after the second

          3  World War.  A third point I want to make is there is

          4  an alternative to the use of force and its the

          5  alternative that France, China and Russia and a

          6  number of other countries have put forward and

          7  that's continuing inspections.  There's absolutely

          8  no reason for this war. If the United States is

          9  really serious, that it's real purpose here is to

         10  disarm Iraq, then why doesn't if just simply have

         11  the inspections continue.  It's obvious to me that

         12  that's not the real purpose of this war.  Fourth, as

         13  you all know in any war the consequences are dire.

         14  This war of course will have those dire

         15  consequences.  Probably estimates are that as many

         16  as 200,000 people in Iraq may die, 2,000,000 people

         17  will be made into refugees in that war, U.S. Service

         18  men will be killed.  Now in some cases some could

         19  argue that some wars are justified and therefore you

         20  have to face the consequences, but when there's

         21  absolutely no justification for a war, then I don't

         22  think you can face those consequences.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Can you please

         24  summarize your two minutes has expired.

         25                 MR. RATNER:  Okay.  Lastly, the City
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          2  Council resolution is totally appropriate.  I like

          3  you all, live here in New York and was witness to

          4  what happened at 9/11.  I like you all see the

          5  consequences of that kind of an attack and I want to

          6  make sure that's avoided, but I'm also here to say

          7  that as even our Government has acknowledged, a war

          8  on Iraq will increase the chances of terrorism to a

          9  great degree.  We're facing an orange alert, in part

         10  I believe because of our actions against Iraq. We're

         11  facing an orange alert in part because we have said

         12  we're going to war.  The U.S. Government itself has

         13  said 250,000 National Reserve Guard will be called

         14  up to protect sights in the United States if we go

         15  to a war with Iraq.  So what you're doing here by

         16  passing a resolution that opposes a war in Iraq is

         17  basically protecting the safety of the people in the

         18  United States.  It's something you have to do.

         19  There is a crime, a monsterous crime the U.S. Is

         20  about to commit.  But there is another crime we

         21  commit and that's the crime of silence if we don't

         22  speak out against this war. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.  I'd

         24  like to ask all the speakers to please strictly

         25  adhere to the two minute rule. When you hear   --
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          2  that the clock is there --  when you hear the beep

          3  that means that your two minutes are up and to

          4  please as quickly as possible summarize the rest of

          5  your testimony.  Before I call upon the next witness

          6  I'd like to recognize we've been joined by Council

          7  Member David Weprin from Queens.  You may begin sir.

          8                 MR. MOSS:  Good morning.  My name's

          9  Lawrence Moss. I've served seven terms on the

         10  Democratic State Committee from Lower Manhattan and

         11  I Chair the Reformed Caucus of the Democratic State

         12  Committee and I'm also a specialist in International

         13  Public Law, I chair the Special Committee on the

         14  United Nations at the Association of the Bar of the

         15  City of New York, but I'm speaking personally and

         16  politically and not on behalf of the Association. I

         17  really want to commend this Committee for

         18  entertaining this resolution, it is the most

         19  important issue before the country and before the

         20  City of New York, and I think that the City has a

         21  special responsibility as the host city for the

         22  United Nations to stand up for the principles of the

         23  United Nations Charter and that is the bottom line

         24  in this resolution, which is there should be no war

         25  unless there is an imminent threat to the United
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          2  States which would authorize a self- defense attack

          3  and that certainly does not exist and there should

          4  be no war unless there is explicit authorization as

          5  a threat to international peace and security under

          6  Article 7 of the United Nations Charter and so far

          7  that authority has not been obtained.  So it's

          8  especially important for this Committee which has

          9  jurisdiction over the City's relationship with the

         10  United Nations to stand up for these fundamental

         11  principles of International Law, even if the

         12  National Administration seems to be disregarding

         13  them.  I also want to point out for the Committee

         14  that I understand all of us are -- all the members

         15  of the Committee are Democrats -- but the State

         16  Democratic Party has taken the position -- on --

         17  opposing unilateral preemptive war as early as

         18  September of last year we overwhelming adopted a

         19  resolution opposing a unilateral preemptive war the

         20  majority of the State's representatives in the

         21  United States Congress and the House of

         22  Representatives did oppose the war and this reflects

         23  the position of grass roots Democrats across the

         24  State of New York, cities and towns across the State

         25  of New York and in my experience the anti war
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          2  sentiment is particularly strong here in the City.

          3  So I think this Committee would be honoring the

          4  wishes of its constituents if it joins the other

          5  major cities in the United States including the two

          6  other of the largest three cities, Los Angeles and

          7  Chicago in adopting this resolution as quickly as

          8  possible.  I thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.  You

         10  may begin now.

         11                 MS. CAGAN:  Good morning.  I'm Jessie

         12  Cagan.  I'm with the United for Peace and Justice

         13  but I'm not the only person here today and I'm not

         14  the sole representative of United for Peace and

         15  Justice, we have some of our other people here who

         16  will probably be testifying.  I am testifying

         17  because I think all of you know that United for

         18  Peace and Justice has been leading in the fight in

         19  New York to have an anti- war resolution passed in

         20  New York City.  We've supported Council Member Bill

         21  Perkins' resolution and we are questioning why it

         22  has been watered down.  We are for, we are

         23  definitely for an anti- war resolution and we're

         24  pleased as I said with Bill Perkins' resolution.

         25  Why in the world does it have to be watered down.
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          2  Will we have copies of this watered down resolution

          3  before we leave, I hope so.  I understand that some

          4  members were concerned about their communities.

          5  Well I do want to say that I am Jewish and I've been

          6  opposed to this war against Iraq.  There is no

          7  earthly reason for invading Iraq and I hope the

          8  Committee takes this into consideration.  We are out

          9  there continuing to work for peace and we hope you

         10  people will do the same.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Just for your

         12  information madam there are copies of the language

         13  for the resolution included in the briefing papers

         14  and -- you -- anyone is welcome to grab a copy of

         15  it, it's on the table here.  Before I call up the

         16  next witness I'd like to recognize that we've been

         17  joined by Council Member Michael Nelson as well as

         18  Council Member Allan Jennings who's a member of this

         19  Committee.  Thank you.  You may begin madam.

         20                 MS. MOROZE:  Thank you.  My names is

         21  Esther Moroze and I'm a Member of the Board of West

         22  Side Peace Action.  I'd like to speak in favor of

         23  the resolution.  I have to say that I haven't seen

         24  the amended resolution, I hope and expect that it

         25  would in essence promote the basic ideas of the
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          2  original resolution.  I think New York City could be

          3  proud to join the more than 113 cities including

          4  other large cities like Chicago and Los Angeles

          5  across our nation that have passed resolutions to

          6  continue all peaceful means to resolve the Iraqi

          7  crisis.  New York City has a special responsibility

          8  as a City that's suffered the greatest loss and

          9  devastation on 9/11.  We must say not in our name.

         10  While President Bush tells the Governors not to

         11  expect a penny from the Federal Government he asks

         12  for 95 billion as mentioned in this mornings Wall

         13  Street Journal, some estimates are that it will be a

         14  trillion for a "short war on Iraq", it's aftermath

         15  and the war on terror. Many people feel that this

         16  will not make us more secure.  What about a war on

         17  illiteracy.  How many teachers would that pay for.

         18  What about a war on homelessness.  How much

         19  affordable housing could we build.  What about a war

         20  on disease.  How many more uninsured could be

         21  covered.  What about a war on hunger.  What about a

         22  war on unemployment. What about a war on injustice.

         23  These are the ways to security.  Many youth looking

         24  for higher education their families cannot afford,

         25  leading to jobs with livable wages have turned to
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          2  the military.  This is a poverty draft.  They are

          3  the ones who will be sent to carry out this violent

          4  action.  Many will be lost.  Many will come back

          5  maimed and scarred, physically and psychologically.

          6  New York will suffer many of those losses. New York

          7  has demonstrated in record numbers on February 15th

          8  to stop the rush to war.  New York must join the

          9  majority of our Country and the World to say the

         10  United States should not act alone but only in

         11  concert with the United Nations and to let the

         12  inspections work.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you for

         14  your testimony. I'd like to at this point call up

         15  the next panel.  Rita Lasar from 9/11 Families for

         16  Peaceful Tomorrows, Elena Mora, Communist Party, New

         17  York State, Susan Asarian Nickerson, West Side Peace

         18  Action, and Phyllis Gunther.  Please come to the

         19  table.  I remind you all to please be mindful of the

         20  two minute time allotment and when you hear the bell

         21  to please summarize as quickly as possible.  We have

         22  a lot of testimony that we need to cover today.  You

         23  may begin.

         24                 MS. LASAR:  Thank you, and thank you

         25  for giving me this opportunity.  My perspective is
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          2  different in that my brother was in the World Trade

          3  Center on September 11th and rather than leave his

          4  wheelchair bound friend he stayed behind for help to

          5  come and they both perished before it did.  Since

          6  President Bush mentioned my brother's act in his

          7  National Cathedral Speech on September 14th my

          8  brother's death has been used to justify the deaths

          9  of thousands of Afghan innocent people and now my

         10  Government proposes to use my brother's name to

         11  justify the deaths of millions of Iraqi's who are

         12  just as innocent as my brother was.  I could go on,

         13  I won't.  I just want to implore this Council to not

         14  send out a resolution that is not absolutely clear

         15  that it is anti- war. Anything other than that, I

         16  think, will shame New York City.  We have survived

         17  the worse that our Country could stand and we're

         18  back on our feet.  We're the proudest city in the

         19  Country and maybe in the World.  Lets not send out a

         20  resolution that does not honor my brother.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  You may begin.

         23                 MS. MORA:  Good morning everyone.

         24  It's a honor to be here and to be seated next to you

         25  Rita.  I actually didn't come prepared because I
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          2  assumed the place would be packed.  I assumed that

          3  because I think that the majority of the people in

          4  our City want the Council to pass this resolution,

          5  but then I was moved to put my name in with everyone

          6  else, so I just want to add a few things to what's

          7  been said.  On the details of the resolution I

          8  didn't get to look at it but I think the important

          9  thing is that the City go on record along with the

         10  other more than 100 cities that have come out

         11  against the drive for war.  Two weeks ago hundreds

         12  of thousands of people came together in our city and

         13  joined millions of others around the World to say no

         14  to war against Iraq.  This was a mass public

         15  expression of people's desire for peace.  It was a

         16  really democratic act.  It was a voting with our

         17  feet.  In the twenty first century to contemplate

         18  war as the Bush Administration is, is to contemplate

         19  slaughter of tens of thousands, maybe more as Rita

         20  said.  It's to plan for mass destruction and how

         21  ironic given that the supposed reason that the

         22  United States will go to war with Iraq is to

         23  eliminate weapons of mass destruction.  We New

         24  Yorkers know, literally know what it means for death

         25  and destruction to rain down on us.  Imagine what a
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          2  full scale aerial bombardment would mean for the

          3  people of Iraq. Our City should add it's voice to

          4  the millions, to the hundreds of cities that have

          5  spoken out for peace to the scores of labor unions

          6  who represent by some calculation a third of the

          7  labor movement in our country, millions of workers

          8  including the unions here in our City who represent

          9  hundreds of thousands of people who have come out

         10  against the war to the governments around the World

         11  to the majority of humanity which says that the only

         12  option in this century is peace.  We reject the idea

         13  of pre-emptive war we should reject the logic of war

         14  as a solution to conflict and we urge the Council to

         15  pass this resolution.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  I'd ask that

         17  before you begin that everyone to identify

         18  themselves and the organization they're with.  You

         19  may begin.

         20                 MS. MORA:  Can I identify myself.  My

         21  name is Elena Mora and I'm the State Chair of the

         22  Communist Party in New York.

         23                 MS. GUNTHER:  Hello, I'm Phyllis

         24  Gunther I am a Democratic District Leader on the

         25  Upper West Side and I'm a member of Community Board
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          2  7 and I've been asking Gale to be part of this

          3  resolution for a long time and I'm happy that she's

          4  here and behind it along with Bill Perkins and I

          5  hope the others will join because this is a serious

          6  threat to New York City in particular.  And if we

          7  can't come out and protect the lives of the citizens

          8  of New York as well as the whole country we're

          9  failing.  New York City is a diverse city and we

         10  have to protect our people.  This war has no real

         11  effect except devastation.  It would be a disaster

         12  and the one thing we want it to accomplish is

         13  against stopping terrorism and if we don't and this

         14  is not going to do it.  And it's also a farce to

         15  attack Iraq whom we're not sure has these weapons of

         16  mass destruction whereas North Korea has them and

         17  we're willing to talk with them or to ignore them so

         18  to me it's a farce and we need the backing of the

         19  U.N. Security Council so I urge you to pass this

         20  resolution.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.  You

         22  may begin.

         23                 MS. ASARIAN NICKERSON:  Susan

         24  Nickerson, Chair of West Side Peace Action.

         25                 Peace Action is the largest grass

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  root organization in the country with over 85,000

          3  members and we do support this measure.  On the new

          4  doctrine of pre- emption the U.S. Is about to embark

          5  on a war which is an illegal violation of the

          6  International Law, the U.N. Charter and the U.S.

          7  Constitution. Bush has indeed changed the discourse

          8  but for the most part it will be the people who will

          9  pay the price.  Since Bush took office matters here

         10  at home have declined significantly.  Economically

         11  our budget went from surplus to deficit.  The

         12  markets lost 8 trillion dollars.  Two million jobs

         13  were lost.  Health and education has worsened.

         14  Enrons proliferate and no one returns their ill-

         15  gotten gains.  Taxes will be rising and those of the

         16  wealthiest will be declining.  Our priorities are

         17  wrong and they must change.  We must support this

         18  resolution along with 113 other cities.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you very

         20  much for your testimony.  I'd like to call up the

         21  third panel, Bob Grossman, Walter Beebe, Sarah

         22  Whitson from the American Arab Anti Discrimination

         23  Committee and Judith Solomon.  Sir you may begin.

         24                 MR. GROSSMAN:  My name is Bob

         25  Grossman.  Let's be clear about what's really going
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          2  on here.  Were faced with a potential war crime, a

          3  crime against a peace.  We had a situation like this

          4  before with Lyndon Johnson and the Gulf of Tonkin.

          5  He liked to us and millions of people died because

          6  of it.  The President of the United States this

          7  illegitimate man who shouldn't even be President has

          8  been lying for months saying that Iraq is a threat

          9  to our security.  He's implying that there is some

         10  kind of connection between Al Qaeda and Saddam

         11  Hussein and the Iraqi people and it's a complete lie

         12  and everybody knows it by now.  Why are we

         13  hesitating about this nonsense.  The people who

         14  don't oppose the war are saying lets have it.  They

         15  are accessories to a crime.  A criminal act.  It's

         16  like seeing a bully punching a little kid around and

         17  standing back and laughing at it and saying well

         18  it's none of my business.  But it is our business.

         19  The whole City, the whole nation is going slowly

         20  into fascism with it being deprived of our schools

         21  of our health care because of the greed of this

         22  little cabal of people in the White House.  It's a

         23  disgrace to not raise your voice against this man

         24  and his cohorts.  We've had enough of these clowns

         25  pretending to be leaders of the Country.  They're
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          2  not leaders they can't even run their own

          3  corporations in a decent manner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Excuse me sir.

          5  Can the talking in the back please cease while

          6  someone is testifying up here.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. GROSSMAN:  All right.  So anybody

          8  who's not, doesn't open their mouth and declare that

          9  this war is insane, it's stupid, it's vicious, it's

         10  criminal, is itself an accessory to the crime of war

         11  for no reason except greed and foolishness and

         12  egotism on the part of our leaders.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. BEEBE:  Good morning.  My names

         14  Walter Beebe. I'm the President of the New York Open

         15  Center and an attorney and a resident of the City

         16  and also witness on 9/11.  That's for

         17  identification.  What I'm talking with you gentlemen

         18  about are the photos that I handed up here for the

         19  record.  If they could be passed out I'd appreciate

         20  it.  One issue before you I believe is whether this

         21  resolution will come up not just in front of this

         22  Committee but in front of the Council at 1 o'clock

         23  this afternoon. I urge you to bring it up and I urge

         24  you to have the Council or urge the Council to vote

         25  on it the full Council.  This two weeks if there is
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          2  a two week delay that may be too late.  The momentum

          3  is now, the time to act has so eloquently been

          4  spoken earlier is now. This is not a war to end all

          5  wars which as any history buff knows was claim for

          6  earlier wars.  This is a war to continue wars as a

          7  method of international relations.  This must not

          8  be.  The pictures that are being passed out to you

          9  are of the -- they're coming around -- are of the

         10  marches around the World.  We saw our own, some

         11  participated and people around the World each had

         12  their own, that was how many millions of people.

         13  New York which you represent sometimes claims itself

         14  as the capital of the World.  These are the

         15  constituents.  Who is listening to them.  As the

         16  capital of the World you have the opportunity to

         17  listen and hear what they want which is not a war at

         18  this time, not this war, not in these circumstances.

         19    Those pictures are the people from across the

         20  entire globe who want you to vote the right way.

         21  The final point I have is what's the relevance of

         22  what you're doing to the City Council or the City of

         23  New York.  It's been put so well but you can even

         24  put it more pinpointed.  How much is going to pay

         25  from our Federal Government, turkey entry fee, just
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          2  to get to the starting gate.  How many billions of

          3  dollars.  It's reported 16 billion. That is relevant

          4  to New York's legitimate need to defend itself

          5  against further terrorist attack and to defend the

          6  entire country and our own economy and our own well-

          7  being.  Thank you.

          8                 MS. WHITSON:  My name is Sarah Lee

          9  Whitson, I'm a resident of New York City and an

         10  attorney with Investment Bank. I'm Chair of the

         11  Government Affairs Committee of the New York Chapter

         12  of the American Arab Anti- Discrimination Committee

         13  and work with the Center for Economic and Social

         14  Rights, a human rights group based in New York City.

         15    You have heard many voices today but the one

         16  voice, the many voices we've not heard from today

         17  are that of the Iraqi people.  The twenty- six

         18  million people of this Country, fifty percent of

         19  whom are under the age of fifteen have certainly not

         20  been given an opportunity to express their opinion

         21  about the liberation that George Bush has promised

         22  them.  In my testimony today I'd like to focus your

         23  attention on what a new war will really mean to the

         24  men, women and children who live in Iraq. I returned

         25  three weeks ago from a Human Rights Mission in Iraq
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          2  sponsored by the Center for Economic and Social

          3  Rights.  Our team composed of doctors, lawyers and

          4  public health experts focused on the human costs of

          5  a war in Iraq.  A cost that no one in our Government

          6  seems to include in it's tally sheets.  The results

          7  of our findings today leave no doubt that renewed

          8  attack on Iraq will have a disastrous impact on the

          9  millions living in Iraq today. After ten years of

         10  war with Iraq and over ten years of sanctions

         11  following the devastating Persian Gulf War the Iraqi

         12  economy is in shambles.  This once wealth oil- rich

         13  country is today among the poorest of the World

         14  comparable to sub- Saharan African nations. The

         15  Iraqi population is far more vulnerable to the

         16  shocks of war today than it was in 1991 having been

         17  reduced to a state of dependency on Government aid.

         18  Currently the majority of the population, over sixty

         19  percent, are entirely dependent on Government for

         20  food aid.  The Iraqi infrastructure is extremely

         21  vulnerable.  The electricity system in Iraq was

         22  almost completely destroyed by allied forces in

         23  1991.  In face of this weak and invulnerable

         24  population the Pentagon has openly publicized it's

         25  plans for a shock and all strategy which calls for
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          2  the U.S. Military to drop over 3,000 cruise missiles

          3  on Baghdad in just the first day of a war against

          4  Iraq followed by four to five hundred missiles daily

          5  in the several following days.  This amounts to over

          6  one cruise missile per minute in a metropolitan city

          7  far smaller than our own.  The magnitude of such an

          8  attack should not escape you.  Compared to the

          9  entire forty days of the Gulf War where the allied

         10  forces dropped a total of only 400 cruise missiles.

         11  I urge you for what even the U.N. estimates to be

         12  the civilian casualty figure leaked documents,

         13  confidential documents of the U.N., of civilian

         14  casualties of over half a million people to vote and

         15  hear New York City's voices against this war.

         16                 MS. SOLOMON:  Hi. My name is Judy

         17  Solomon.  I came just  --  I didn't know I was going

         18  to speak -- I'm a little nervous.  I represent

         19  myself and hundreds of friends and relatives that

         20  probably gets into the thousands across the country,

         21  friends and relatives.

         22                 I think this anti- war movement has

         23  been a great unifier all over the Country and in our

         24  City, as well.  It's clear that -- most -- to me

         25  that a huge number of New Yorkers are against this
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          2  war, partly because of fear for their own safety as

          3  well as for the damage it will cause around the

          4  World.  I came naively expecting to say that the

          5  Council should, should stand on an anti war proposal

          6  regardless of the U.N. What they vote because I

          7  don't trust what our country is doing to twist arms

          8  around the World to get the vote they want in the

          9  U.N.  But I'm kind of -- if I've understood this

         10  latest resolution that I'm looking at right now, I

         11  think everybody who said they've supported this

         12  resolution should read it again because it looks to

         13  me that what it's saying is that the proposed

         14  resolution will call on the City Council of New York

         15  to oppose a pre-emptive attack on Iraq unless it is

         16  demonstrated that Iraq poses a real and imminent

         17  threat to the security and safety of the United

         18  States or its allies and all other options for

         19  achieving compliance with the U.N. resolution for

         20  elimination of weapons has failed.  Therefore, we're

         21  voting to allow the same Administration that got us

         22  into the situation to make the case that it's been

         23  demonstrated that all other options has failed.  So

         24  as it stands, I didn't see the original one, I trust

         25  it wasn't like this. I don't support this
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          2  resolution.  Excuse me.  That's all I have to say.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you for

          4  your testimony.

          5                 I'd like to call up the next panel.

          6                 Before I do, I'd like to recognize

          7  that the Committee has been joined by Council Member

          8  Alan Gerson from Manhattan.

          9                 The next panel I'd like to call up,

         10  Richard Crisci, Mina Hamilton, Estevan Nembuard from

         11  Uptown for Peace and Justice and Tim Eubanks from

         12  NYC Cities for Peace.

         13                 MR. GERSON:  Mr. Chair, if I may?

         14  Thank you very much for allowing me to be present,

         15  even though I am not a member of the Committee.  I

         16  want to thank you and I want to thank you for your

         17  leadership and your approach and congratulate you in

         18  handling this difficult issue.  We're fortunate to

         19  have you in the position in which we do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you,

         21  Councilman.  You may begin.

         22                 MR. CRISCI:  Good morning.  I would

         23  first like to say that -- I'm opposed -- I'm in

         24  favor of the resolution but I think there needs to

         25  be some changes made.
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          2                 In fact, there is an error that I

          3  found in the resolution I would like to bring to the

          4  attention of the Committee.  On the first page at

          5  the bottom it says that weapons inspectors were

          6  ordered out of Iraq in 1998 by Saddam Hussein.  That

          7  is not exactly correct.  There were withdrawn by the

          8  United Nations because they claimed Saddam was not

          9  complying, so I would appreciate it if you could

         10  correct that resolution on that point.

         11                 Now, what I would like to say is that

         12  my son was atop the World Trade Center around 9 a.m.

         13  just about three weeks before they went down.  My

         14  brother is a New York City fireman who worked nearly

         15  a year on the clean- up and still suffers physically

         16  and psychologically from that.  I'm begging this

         17  Committee, I do not want my beloved City to be

         18  attacked again.  If you think they hated us before

         19  9/11, just wait until after an unprovoked attack on

         20  Iraq.  If we do attack, it will not be a war, it

         21  will be a slaughter. We decimated Iraqi forces

         22  during the Gulf War, we have been bombing Iraq

         23  continuously, at least twice a week for the last 12

         24  years, the sanctions have been responsible for the

         25  deaths of over a million Iraqis including half a
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          2  million children under the age of five over which

          3  Assistant U.N. Secretary General Dennis Halliday

          4  resigned in 1998.  The International Atomic Energy

          5  Agency has declared Iraq free of nuclear weapons.

          6  The idea that somehow Iraq is a threat to the United

          7  States is ludicrous.  The real threat is to the

          8  people of the United States and New York City if we

          9  attack Iraq.  That would only increase the

         10  likelihood of more retaliatory attacks and New York

         11  City would be the number one target.  Thank you.

         12                 MS. HAMILTON:  My name is Mina

         13  Hamilton.  I'm a resident of New York City.  Thank

         14  you for having this hearing. What has Iraq done to

         15  us?  What has Iraq done to us?  What has Iraq done

         16  to us?  Now I'm going to make a sound.  This is the

         17  sound I heard at 2 p.m. On September 11, 2001.

         18   "aaaaaaaaaaggggggghhhhhhhh" I heard that sound

         19  repeatedly from a neighbor of mine who was crying

         20  out his grief and rage about the death of a loved

         21  one who was burned at the World Trade Center.  I

         22  want to make that sound when I think of the woman

         23  who was sitting in the elevator, standing in the

         24  elevator that was going up on September 11th at the

         25  World Trade Center and the doors opened and a ball
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          2  of flame rolled into the elevator.  Now there was a

          3  man, she was engulfed in flames, there was a man

          4  standing next to her.  That man took his palms and

          5  he patted out the flames on her body, burning his

          6  palms and he managed to get that woman out of the

          7  World Trade Center.  She died about three months

          8  later from burns all over her body.  What has Iraq

          9  done to us?

         10                 What have the citizens of Iraq done

         11  to us that they deserve to be burned in the flames

         12  of 800 cruise missiles in the first two days of this

         13  war?

         14                 Did they deserve to be crushed by

         15  fallen buildings?  Did they deserve to be impaled by

         16  flying debris?  What has Iraq done to us?

         17                 The CIA has stated this war will

         18  inflame more hatred throughout the Muslim World and

         19  result in more acts of terrorism.  Of course it

         20  will.  Think about the lies that we are hearing

         21  about smart bombs.  Smart bombs are smart propaganda

         22  for dumb people.  This war will be a massacre.

         23  Eight hundred cruise missiles in two days will be a

         24  massacre.

         25                 One last comment, this war will
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          2  savage the New York already weak economy.  We have a

          3  3.4 billion dollar deficit and President Bush has

          4  made it very clear there's no money for anything as

          5  he said, but in fact there's money to buy off Turkey

          6  and all the other countries.  Please vote against

          7  this war in Iraq.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.

          9                 Before we begin with the next

         10  testimony I'd like to recognize that the Committee

         11  has been joined by Council Member Simcha Felder.

         12  Thank you for being here.

         13                 Sir, you may begin.

         14                 MR. EUBANKS: I'm Tim Eubanks from NYC

         15  Cities for Peace.  I'd like to thank the Chairman

         16  Serrano for holding this Committee Meeting although

         17  its unfortunate that so few members of the Committee

         18  showed up.

         19                 On October 23rd, New York City City

         20  Council members introduced a resolution condemning

         21  Congress for authorizing the Bush Administration to

         22  invade a sovereign nation with neither International

         23  support nor evidence of guilt.  A war illegal under

         24  the United Nations Charter.  I'm here to ask this

         25  Committee where the resolution has been since
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          2  October to ask this Committee to vote for this

          3  resolution and send it to the full Council for

          4  consideration.  For the consideration that it's due

          5  in these most extraordinary of times.

          6                 Since the resolution arrived at this

          7  Committee, 113 other cities and countries have

          8  passed an anti-war resolution, including Atlanta,

          9  Los Angeles, Detroit, Washington, D.C., Baltimore,

         10  San Francisco, Seattle.  Chicago's passed by a vote

         11  of 46 to 1.  Philadelphia's passed unanimously.

         12                 Also, since October it's become

         13  increasingly clear this war will be waged neither

         14  with proof of Iraqi's assumption or International

         15  backing.  Poll after poll has shown that a majority

         16  of Americans oppose this rush to war and I ask this

         17  Committee to join that majority and cities across

         18  this country large and small that have passed

         19  anti-war resolutions.

         20                 I ask you to pass a resolution that

         21  declares your opposition.  I have complete faith

         22  that this Committee will answer the people's cries.

         23  After all, there are Council Members on this

         24  Committee who have marched with a leading voice

         25  against war, Dr. Martin Luther King Jr., who of
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          2  which campaigns to educate the people on resisting

          3  violence, who have worked for social justice at the

          4  NAACP, an organization that has come out against the

          5  war.

          6                 For these, and so many other reasons,

          7  I appeal to all of this Committee's members as

          8  progressive, visionary voices in this City to pass

          9  this resolution, and send it to the full Council for

         10  consideration with your recommendation.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Please hold

         12  your applause to the end.  You may begin, Sir.

         13                 MR. NEMBUARD:  Thank you sir.  My

         14  name is Estevan Nembuard, I represent Uptown Youth

         15  for Peace and Justice, a community organization that

         16  is actually in Bill Perkins' District and we had a

         17  thousand young people come out and march in December

         18  to support the Councilman's resolution.  I'm here

         19  today to ask this Committee to help formalize what I

         20  think the people of New York have already called

         21  for.  On the last -- the fifteenth -- a couple weeks

         22  ago when half a million people marched in New York

         23  City, I think the people of New York spoke and it's

         24  clear that we are against this war.

         25                 The impacts of this war will be
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          2  disastrous on young people.  New York State has

          3  planned to -- has been asked to spend 7 billion

          4  dollars to pay for this war.  Seven billion dollars.

          5                 At the same time that this 7 billion

          6  dollars is going to be taken from our economy to pay

          7  for the war, the tuition rates at CUNY, the City

          8  University system, you know where the young people

          9  from this state are able to get a higher education,

         10  are being raised by 40 percent.  Millions of dollars

         11  are being cut from the Board of Education, the

         12  summer youth jobs programs are being de-funded,

         13  there's still not a living wage in the State, and

         14  it's just hard for people to live here and I think

         15  those are the best security that you can give to

         16  people.

         17                 If you want to give security to the

         18  people in New York State I think we have to

         19  guarantee them a quality education where there's not

         20  40 kids in the classroom. If we want security we

         21  have to guarantee a job for everybody here. And

         22  that's not what we are doing.  This war isn't gonna

         23  give us security.  I tell you, I live in Washington

         24  Heights and I've been walking to the train station

         25  and now they have people in there with -- you know
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          2  armed  -- little kids in there with machine guns and

          3  fatigues on and that's supposed to be security.  At

          4  the same time that they want to close the token

          5  booths and that's not the way -- that's not our way

          6  right now.  The only answer to September 11th is

          7  going to be peace and justice.  I lost a friend that

          8  day and when I walked up and down my street there

          9  were all these candles up there and it wasn't

         10  because we wanted revenge, it's because we want a

         11  new day where there's no more innocent people who

         12  have to die, and I think that we have to, you know,

         13  we have to stand for that on behalf of the young

         14  people, on the behalf of history let's do that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.  In

         16  the interest of time, being that I would like

         17  everyone to get the opportunity to speak before we

         18  have to leave, I'd ask everyone to please hold their

         19  applause.

         20                 I'd like to call up the next panel.

         21  Daniel Starling from Green Party Manhattan Office;

         22  Elizabeth Shanklin, Green Party; Judith LeBlume from

         23  United for Peace and Justice; and Regina McRae,

         24  please come up at this time.

         25                 I'd like to mention that the
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          2  Committee has been joined by Council Member James

          3  Oddo, who's the Minority Leader Council Member from

          4  Staten Island.  Thank you for joining us.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Just while

          6  people are getting settled, I want to really thank

          7  Laura Gonzalez for her work.  I know that she's your

          8  wonderful Counsel, but she's been helpful to us,

          9  just I want to make it known on the record, and also

         10  Brian Cavanaugh, who is Chief of Staff and General

         11  Counsel in my office.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  You may begin.

         13                 MR. STARLING:  Yes.  Hello.  Good

         14  morning.  My name is Daniel Starling, I represent

         15  the Green Party, Manhattan Office.  I just delivered

         16  some petitions that we started this weekend in

         17  support of Council Member Perkins' Resolution 549,

         18  as it was originally written.  We'll have to look at

         19  this again and decide what we're going to do, but I

         20  think we'll continue to support it.

         21                 I stand before you to deliver you a

         22  message today, and that message is that a majority

         23  of New Yorkers oppose unilateral military action in

         24  Iraq, and the many people who have spoken here today

         25  about this most pressing issue in this time, this
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          2  drive to war against this sovereign nation that has

          3  not done anything to the United States, and

          4  representing the Green Party Office Committee we

          5  decided to start a petition this weekend in favor of

          6  the City Council Resolution 549.

          7                 In the last three days we're able to

          8  collect several hundred signatures from residents

          9  from all five boroughs. The signatures represent,

         10  not just a few people in the East Village, but come

         11  from Astoria, Flatbush, Bed-Stuy, Staten Island, the

         12  Upper East Side and the Bronx.  These people are

         13  people of all races, classes and religious

         14  backgrounds, and we hope to continue the petition if

         15  there's no vote on this today.

         16                 They're addressed to the speaker and

         17  I hope Mr. Perkins you can deliver them to him

         18  personally and we will keep getting more signatures

         19  as needed in support of the resolution.  Thank you.

         20                 MS. MCRAE:  Oh yes, good morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Before you

         22  begin I 'd like to recognize that the Committee has

         23  been joined by Council Member Lewis Fidler.  Thank

         24  you for being here.

         25                 You may begin.
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          2                 MS. MCRAE:  My name is Regina McRae.

          3  I'm a member of the West 138th Street Homeowners

          4  Association, Hamilton Heights Homeowners

          5  Association, Community Board 9, Precinct Council 33.

          6                 I'm speaking on a personal level.

          7  Very personal right now.  The gentleman spoke

          8  earlier, and he mentioned that we were the Big

          9  Apple, and right now when I see this watered down

         10  resolution, I see applesauce.  I see a City Council

         11  that seems to have passed a resolution, or is about

         12  to pass a resolution, because it's now fashionable,

         13  because a hundred other cities have done so.  I

         14  don't see a backbone.  I see something that's a

         15  loophole that's bigger than any tax loophole Enron

         16  was ever able to leap through.

         17                 When you say we pass a resolution

         18  that allows war, if we find such and such, that

         19  means anytime Saddam sneezes and the mucous reaches

         20  the White House Bush can say, look, there's a

         21  contamination.  Twenty-one people died last week

         22  because of this damn Orange alert, and someone

         23  sprayed mace which anyone who has ever partied in an

         24  urban area knows Mace when they smell it.  That club

         25  was located in the part of Chicago that's known as
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          2  you know the South Side where the ghetto part is,

          3  but because of orange alert and this terrorism and

          4  threats and people running around thinking the end

          5  of the world is eminent, people kill themselves

          6  trying to get away from it.  I'm very disappointed

          7  in this.

          8                 And Martin Luther King, if people

          9  want to quote people said, if you don't stand for

         10  something, you'll fall for anything.  I don't know

         11  what the original one looks like, but I'm sure it

         12  had a lot more backbone in this.  This is saying

         13  well, we'll, we're going to appease the people of

         14  New York City but were not going to antagonize the

         15  Bush Administration.  I was out in eighteen degrees

         16  for four hours among many people who I'm sure are

         17  here today.  Half a million people came out but we

         18  have a room for something this major that affects

         19  every single one of us that can't fit more than

         20  fifty people.  People have to stand in the hallway

         21  and on the stairs.  I don't know who planned, we'll,

         22  yeah, maybe a few people will show up so we'll get

         23  this small room.  If you didn't have enough room,

         24  you should have waited until you had more room.

         25                 This is an important issue.  All of
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          2  our lives are at stake.

          3                 Martin Luther King also said

          4  something else very important:  "If mankind doesn't

          5  put an end to war, war will put an end to mankind,"

          6  and every single person on this City Council, their

          7  lives are in danger, their livelihood, the fate of

          8  their children and their grandchildren.  We talk

          9  about, oh, save the whales and save this monument,

         10  and let's make this one a landmark, and we might all

         11  be dead because no one wants to stand up and make

         12  Bush angry or make the Government angry.  I don't

         13  understand what people are thinking of.

         14                 North Korea has been proven to have

         15  nuclear war heads, but we won't mess with North

         16  Korea because they're stronger than Saddam.  You

         17  know, am I seeing some kind of racism here, where,

         18  okay, so it's okay to pick on an Arab, it's okay to

         19  pick on a brown person, but we're not going to mess

         20  with the Asians because they have too much in their

         21  arsenal?  And then we're going to set an example, a

         22  precedent of preemptive strikes.  North Korea says

         23  this morning, well, you know what?  It looks like

         24  the United States may attack us, so we should attack

         25  them first.  We cannot set a precedence of
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          2  pre-emptive strikes.  And we have to stand.  We have

          3  to stand.

          4                 And I'm disappointed in the Council

          5  Member who drafted this.  I'm disappointed in those

          6  who made ten copies.  Okay, there's not even enough

          7  copies even to go around the room, which shows me

          8  that none of you have taken this seriously.

          9                 There should have been half a million

         10  copies here.  I'm sure our City Government has

         11  enough money to make a few more copies.  Half a

         12  million people march and you didn't expect more than

         13  a few people to show up.  I'm very disappointed in

         14  my City Council.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO: You may begin,

         16  Ma'am.

         17                 MS. SHANKLIN:  Thank you. I'm

         18  Elizabeth Shanklin, I'm the Chair of the Green Party

         19  in Bronx County and I represent New York State Green

         20  Party to the United States Green Party.

         21                 I want to pose the question:  Should

         22  the wealthiest country in the history of the world

         23  lead the world to contempt for law and life?

         24                 The Bush Administration's doctrine of

         25  preemptive strike shows contempt for the lives of
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          2  the Iraqi people; it shows contempt for

          3  International Law; it shows contempt for the United

          4  Nations; it shows contempt for the future of our

          5  country; it shows contempt for the wellbeing of the

          6  American people.

          7                 A preemptive strike will lead

          8  increasing numbers of people to hate our country and

          9  retaliatory attacks upon our country and citizens.

         10  It will squander our wealth.

         11                 I am a retired teacher.  If two

         12  children in an elementary school got into a fight,

         13  they would be taught to share their toys.

         14                 If in junior high school two young

         15  people got into a fight, they would be sent to the

         16  principal.

         17                 If in senior high school they got

         18  into a fight, we would bring in a New York City

         19  conflict resolution teams.  This is the tradition of

         20  education in this country.

         21                 The Bush doctrine will throw that out

         22  the window, and what will the consequences be?  How

         23  will we teach the future generations in this country

         24  to live in harmony and respect the law when the

         25  Government of the United States demonstrates a
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          2  thorough-going contempt for International Law and

          3  the wellbeing for life and planet?

          4                 This will lead to a justification of

          5  a rule of force, a police state and facism.  Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  At this time

          8  I'd like to turn it over, turn the microphone over

          9  to Council Member Lew Fidler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I'm sure that

         11  some of the people in the audience who are going to

         12  boo what I have to say, probably if you're old

         13  enough or were on picket lines with me in 1969 and

         14  '70 and '71 and '72 when we protested the war in

         15  Vietnam.  I hope that by saying what I'm saying, I'm

         16  not tearing up my anti-war draft card, but I have to

         17  tell you that I disagree as a matter of conscience

         18  with everything that was just said.

         19                 If we are going to talk about

         20  sovereign nations, let's talk about Kuwait and

         21  Israel, which are sovereign nations that were

         22  attacked, unprovoked, in the name of someone's

         23  imperialistic desire in Iraq.

         24                 You are going to talk about a pressed

         25  ethnic minorities, let's talk about the Curds
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          2  (phonetic) who've been gassed by Saddam Hussein.

          3  And if we're going to quote historic figures, let's

          4  quote Neville Chamberlain, who thought we had bought

          5  peace in our time, when we allowed somebody else to

          6  roll his tanks into a sovereign nation because he

          7  felt like it.

          8                 I don't want to be back here in six

          9  months naming more streets after dead New Yorkers

         10  because we didn't act and I'm not prepared to wait

         11  for Jacque Sherak to tell me that it's okay for us

         12  to defend ourselves from a madman who is sitting

         13  possibly on nuclear weapons, certainly on chemical

         14  and germ weapons.  It's just wrong.

         15                 I don't want that proof to arrive at

         16  the Empire State Building or the Statue of Liberty

         17  or what's left of this city.  We are in what should

         18  be the shadows of the World Trade Center.  There is

         19  no more graphic example of what happens when we

         20  allow people to export terrorism across this World,

         21  and in my view we are hurting the cause of peace by

         22  allowing mad men, like Saddam Hussein, to be in

         23  control of weapons of mass destruction, and I will

         24  tell you that you cannot hide your head in the sand.

         25  You can't pretend it doesn't exist, okay?  And I'm
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          2  not a liar.  That's how I feel.  That's how a number

          3  of my constituents feel.  Nobody, nobody is in favor

          4  of war.  I know that the first rule of war is that

          5  young men and women die and innocent civilians get

          6  hurt, but you know what?  I also know what the

          7  result of terrorism is and everybody who lives in

          8  this City should know it well, too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Council Member

         10  Simcha Felder. Thank you.

         11                 MR. FELDER:  Thank you.  I agree with

         12  everything my colleague just mentioned, and I want

         13  to thank you all for coming today to protest the war

         14  that began September 11th, and to listen to you, to

         15  listen to you.

         16                 I'll let you finish.  When you feel

         17  better let me know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Excuse me,

         19  Council Member.

         20                 I will not allow any outbursts by the

         21  Council Members speaking. Please be respectful of

         22  the Council Members speaking.  Thank you.

         23                 MR. FELDER:  So I'm not going to

         24  repeat what my colleague mentioned, but I think the

         25  war started a long time ago and I think that the
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          2  fact that there was no protest, mass protest during

          3  the Clinton Administration when Bosnia, I'd like to

          4  know where were a half a million people to protest

          5  that?

          6                 I'm not interested in politics.

          7  There's no such thing whether you're a democrat or

          8  republican or anything else, but it's clear to me

          9  that this has nothing to do with war and peace or

         10  protecting lives, this has to do with politics at

         11  it's worst.  And it's a pleasure seeing the

         12  communists and socialists who are alive and unwell

         13  here.  It's really wonderful having you here today

         14  with your kind comments, but this, this is no

         15  preemptive thing, and this is no spin.  No one,

         16  including Caravel or anybody else, can put a spin on

         17  this.  The United States has to protect its

         18  citizenry.

         19                 And just one other point about the

         20  economic stuff, this spin about the economic stuff.

         21  The proposed, and I agree entirely about the

         22  resolution not being an apple, I think it's a rotten

         23  apple, it's not applesauce because it really doesn't

         24  care about protecting the citizens of this Country

         25  who are under attack.  And in terms of the economic
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          2  course, the National Bureau of Economic Research

          3  estimates that there will be an economic cost of 150

          4  to $750 billion, this is what the resolution says,

          5  to fight the war and rebuild Iraq.  I'm the only CPA

          6  on this City Council, and I don't know if I'm that

          7  good a CPA, but I can add and subtract and I'd like

          8  to point out that the resolution fails to explore

          9  the economic costs of, God forbid, another September

         10  11th type of attack, which is what the President is

         11  responding to, for Heaven sake.  In fact, 9/11

         12  analysts estimate that the stock market lost over $2

         13  trillion.  Why isn't anybody talking about that?

         14  From an economic perspective the question should not

         15  be how can we afford to fight this war, but rather

         16  how can we afford not to fight this war.

         17                 Furthermore, what would the World

         18  look like if Franklin Roosevelt felt it was too

         19  expensive to destroy Hitler?  We don't have any

         20  choice and it's a pleasure meeting you all here

         21  today, and I look forward to your doing the same

         22  thing that you did under a republican Administration

         23  and future democratic administrations when it comes

         24  to things that are of such importance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.
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          2                 Every Council Member on this panel

          3  has been respectful of the testimony that's been

          4  brought forth, and I ask that you do the same when

          5  Council Members are speaking.

          6                 Council Member Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I was going to

          8  say the same thing.  I was listening to a lot of

          9  stuff that I totally disagreed with, but I didn't

         10  jump up and down, as much as I wanted to.  So try to

         11  contain yourself, please.

         12                 I've heard a few things.  I just

         13  wanted to go into, if it was gone into when I left

         14  and came back, please correct me, but I heard it was

         15  analogous between North Korea and Iraq; was that

         16  dealt with since that accusation was made?

         17                 This war was won ten years ago with

         18  conditions.  It's not the same thing against North

         19  Korea.  I think we should get that straight.  This

         20  was a country, Iraq, that did not go along with any

         21  of the conditions that we know of.

         22                 They threw out the weapons

         23  inspectors.  We should have acted right there and

         24  then by the way in that time.  But we didn't. But

         25  they did not follow the guidelines.  So it's a
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          2  different situation, totally different situation.

          3                 The machist crimes that Saddam has

          4  done to his people and will continue to do, it will

          5  not be contained.  Appeasing animals such as him is

          6  not going to work, gang.

          7                 I also protested the Vietnam War.  I

          8  was a Vietnam era Veteran, and after I got out, it

          9  was veteran's against the war, because there was no

         10  political will to fight that, it wasn't done

         11  correctly, whether it was morally right or wrong was

         12  another consideration, but there was a reason for

         13  that.  We were going nowheres absolutely, because we

         14  were dying and so were they.  This is altogether

         15  different. We're threatened.  It's a different

         16  zygist.   Weapons of mass destruction, it was mad

         17  neutrally assured destruction.  It does not apply

         18  anymore when people who are not afraid to be

         19  destroyed themselves.  It's a different world, a

         20  different plateau, and this guy, I believe, we don't

         21  know, I heard somebody make a comment before that he

         22  knew and everybody knows he doesn't have any weapons

         23  of mass destruction.  I'm so glad there's a guy

         24  right there who knew that Saddam had no weapons of

         25  mass destruction because he should really be working
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          2  with the CIA or some other organization. I believe

          3  he does.  As a matter of fact, as sure as I can

          4  possibly be, without knowing either.  We have to

          5  stop him.  We have to stop him.

          6                 I don't know for sure if war is the

          7  answer either, but to say that war is definitely oh,

          8  this is terrible, oh, boy, is this terrible -  I

          9  don't know if that's the correct way to go either.

         10  But anyway, thank you for showing up.  You're doing

         11  exactly what you're supposed to do as American

         12  citizens, and thank God you live in America where

         13  you can do it.  Try that against Saddam Hussein in

         14  Iraq.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.

         16                 Okay, I'd like to call up the next

         17  panel.  Alex Stavis, Rita Haley, Jessica Flagg,

         18  Michael Letwing.

         19                 Please be mindful that you have two

         20  minutes. Please speak into the microphone.

         21                 MR. LETWING:  Thank you. My name is

         22  Michael Letwing, I'm co- convener of New York City

         23  Labor Against the War and I'm former President of

         24  UAW Local 2325 the Association of Legal Aid

         25  Attorney's.  We are here in the spirit of Martin
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          2  Luther King Jr's courageous opposition to the war in

          3  Vietnam and we're not alone.

          4                 In the United States, Unions with at

          5  least 5 million members, the equivalent of one-third

          6  of organized labor in this country have come out

          7  against the Bush Administration's war on Iraq and

          8  the numbers grow every day.

          9                 I will add that as the AFLCIO

         10  Executive Council meets this week it is anticipated

         11  that it will be adopting an anti- war resolution.

         12  In New York City alone some thirty labor bodies with

         13  approximately half a million members or more endorse

         14  the massive February 15th anti- war protest in New

         15  York City.  These included some of the largest in

         16  the city.  1199 SCIU, AFSCME, DC 37 and 1707 CWA,

         17  District 1, PSC CUNY, Transit Workers Local 100, UAW

         18  Region 9A, the Working Families Party, the list goes

         19  on and on. And the message that we want to send is

         20  this:  With or without U.N. approval, this war is a

         21  weapon of mass distraction.  From oil from U.S.

         22  empire, from a crumbling economy at home, and to

         23  paraphrase the Council Member's earlier comments

         24  here, to stop a mad man who is in control of weapons

         25  of mass destruction who happens to sit in the White
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          2  House.  That war will further victimize the Iraqi

          3  people who have suffered horribly through ten years

          4  of U.S. war and sanctions and working people in this

          5  country will pay with our sons and daughters of

          6  uniform, in uniform with destruction of our social

          7  services, with unprecedented attacks on labor, civil

          8  and immigrant rights and with further blowback in

          9  the form of terrorist attacks, such as that which we

         10  experienced here on 9/11, which Council Member, I

         11  would direct to you, in particular, Council Member

         12  Felder, was a response to a blowback from the same

         13  kind of American policy but is now being pursued by

         14  the Bush Administration.  I'm glad you find that

         15  amusing, Council Member, but most of us who

         16  experienced 9/11 do not find it amusing.  We find it

         17  tragic, and it's time for the Council to have the

         18  courage to do something about it.

         19                 For all of those reasons, I think

         20  it's fair to say that the threat to us in this

         21  country today and to the people around the World is

         22  not Iraq, but just as during Martin Luther King's

         23  time, it's our only government.  We hope that this

         24  Council will not be part of the problem, it will

         25  become part of the solution and nothing makes that
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          2  clearer than recent events in New York itself.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Can you please

          4  summarize.

          5                 MR. LETWING:  I will.  Thank you.

          6                 The Bush Administration's plan to

          7  spend hundreds of billions of dollars to control

          8  Iraqi oil, together with massive tax cuts for the

          9  rich have nearly bankrupted this City and it's

         10  State.  The Bloomburg Administration today is

         11  slashing union services and municipal workers, for

         12  example the poorly paid day care workers who he said

         13  there would not be a penny for raises and one

         14  federal court in the recent weeks upheld the cities

         15  blatantly unconstitutional denial of a march permit

         16  for February 15th while the same week another

         17  federal court repealed restrictions on NYPD

         18  political spying. These rulings reflect a broad

         19  attack on civil liberties, immigrant and labor

         20  rights all under the guise of 9/11 and in conclusion

         21  I would just say that our message is very simple.

         22  No war no way. It's time for the Council to have the

         23  guts to come out and say that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  We're running

         25  short on time. Please begin madam.
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          2                 MS. HALEY:  Good morning, or I guess

          3  I should say afternoon.  My name is Rita Haley and I

          4  represent the thousands of members of the New York

          5  City Chapter of the National Organization for Women.

          6                 I happen to be Jewish myself, a

          7  staunch supporter of Israel.  Now New York City is

          8  not a communist, it's not socialist, not that any of

          9  those things should be relevant.

         10                 Now, New York City calls on the New

         11  York City Council to oppose the war in Iraq.  Now

         12  New York City calls on the New York City Council to

         13  protect the lives of the women, men and children who

         14  live in New York City. Now New York City members

         15  love this City and we call on the New York City

         16  Council to express the will of the thousands of New

         17  Yorkers who brave the frigid cold and police

         18  harassment to assert their opposition to the war on

         19  Iraq.  We call on you, the members of the New York

         20  City Council, to speak for us to the World by

         21  passing a resolution strongly opposing the war on

         22  Iraq.

         23                 Now New York City, the founding

         24  Chapter of the National Organization for Women,

         25  condemns terrorism and supports pursuing known
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          2  terrorists and bringing them to justice through

          3  appropriate legal channels both nationally and

          4  internationally.  Terrorism creates a climate of

          5  intolerance, hate, violence and hopelessness and it

          6  is only through the promotion of peace, equality and

          7  self-sufficiency that we can truly end such horrors.

          8                 Now New York City opposes the

          9  opportunistic use of the war on terrorism as an

         10  excuse for a war on Iraq and for the continuation of

         11  unilateral policies in violation of International

         12  Law.

         13                 George W. Bush has not, in our

         14  opinion, made a case to the people of the United

         15  States for his planned war against Iraq.  The United

         16  Nations, the only viable vehicle for the promotion

         17  of peace and International Order has decided to give

         18  the inspection process sufficient time to uncover

         19  and destroy any illegal weapons in Iraq, now

         20  encourages our Government to cooperate with our

         21  International partners in resolving this conflict

         22  through the use of diplomacy and other non- military

         23  means.  The U.S. war against Iraq serves as a

         24  recruiting tool for more terrorists and actually

         25  makes us less safe at home.
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          2                 The Bush Administration has thus far

          3  been unable to find Osami Bin Laden, dismantel the

          4  Al Queda or catch those responsible for the anthrax

          5  mailings.  A war in Iraq will draw resources away

          6  from that process and from increasing real security.

          7                 The Bush Administration is selling us

          8  a false sense of security through increased

          9  militarism.  Real security includes a safe

         10  community, decent shelter, quality healthcare and

         11  education and dignified work that pays a living

         12  wage.  The cost of a war in Iraq would do serious

         13  harm to an already faltering U.S. and New York City

         14  economy.

         15                 Increased defense spending and large

         16  tax cuts have turned budget surpluses into deficits.

         17  Bush can only increase military spending at the

         18  expense of domestic social services, many of which

         19  assist women, people of color and low-income

         20  families all struggling in these disastrous economic

         21  times.

         22                 Every $100 billion spent on this war

         23  is three times what the Federal Government spends on

         24  kindergarten through grade 12 education.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Can you please
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          2  summarize your testimony at this point.  Thank you.

          3                 MS. HALEY:  Yes.  I guess the most

          4  important point I want to make is that we urge the

          5  City Council to unambiguously express the will of

          6  the City, of the people of this City of New York.

          7                 It's very clear what New Yorkers

          8  want.  It's very clear to us what now New York City

          9  New Yorkers want.  George Bush severted (sic) the

         10  will of the people when he was annointed and

         11  appointed President by a right wing Supreme Court.

         12  Don't let him severt the will of the people again.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Please begin.

         14                 MS. FLAGG:  Hello.  My name is

         15  Jessica Flagg, and I'm greatful for the opportunity

         16  to express my opinion and also to meet you.  Thank

         17  you for your good work.

         18                 I represent many different groups,

         19  I'm co-founder of an organization called New York

         20  Climate Rescue.  I'm also the Director of the ECAAR

         21  which is Economists Allied for Arms Reduction

         22  Business Council.  We have nine nobel laureate

         23  economists on our Board.

         24                 I'm also representing the Business

         25  and Professional Women's Club.  I'm a past President
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          2  of one of the New York Chapters.  I have been

          3  increasingly active politically in the face of what

          4  I consider to be a threat against our democracy.

          5                 More importantly, I'm also a very

          6  spiritual person, and I looked at what happened on

          7  September 11th as a real tragedy, a real failing of

          8  our country and our collective human responsibility

          9  to each other.  And I looked at the events of

         10  September 11th as an opportunity for the United

         11  States of America and in particular for New Yorkers

         12  to make a contribution that was uncommon.

         13                 We live in an uncommon time.  We are

         14  actually faced with a time in our evolution where we

         15  both have the best and the worst.

         16                 We have the technologies to solve all

         17  of the problems that the world faces, all of them.

         18  We have the wealth to solve all of the problems that

         19  the world faces.  Collectively, this world is

         20  bountiful, but we have managed to fail in the

         21  delivery of the promise, if you like, of

         22  globalization.

         23                 Globalization in and of itself is not

         24  a terrible thing, but we've failed in delivering the

         25  promise of it.  We have failed in delivering the
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          2  promise of democracy, and we have failed in

          3  delivering the promise of what the best of

          4  capitalism has to offer, and the ability for the

          5  human spirit, the entrepreneur in us, to express

          6  itself in finding ways to enrich the world and each

          7  other and improve our lives.

          8                 I would say to you that the stock

          9  market losing its value has nothing to do with

         10  September 11th.  It has everything to do with the

         11  failed promise.  It has everything to do with our

         12  honesty and our integrity and our respect for each

         13  other.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Will you please

         15  summarize your testimony at this point.

         16                 MS. FLAGG:  This resolution is

         17  partially all right. We should be speaking out

         18  against the war, because war doesn't solve problems.

         19  Other people have said that.

         20                 We should be looking at the money

         21  that this is going to cost.  We are not defending

         22  our borders.  We are not securing the ports of

         23  embarcation of the goods that are being shipped into

         24  this country.  Checking them once they get here is a

         25  little bit late, but we need to be doing that too.
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          2                 We are not spending the money that is

          3  being spent on this war on what I would call real

          4  national security, and I think that it is incumbent

          5  upon City Council in New York to recognize that our

          6  budget, the U.S. budget, is not only stealing money

          7  from the states and the cities but it is failing to

          8  protect the United States of America and I would

          9  really like to see the City Council take a stand to

         10  protect the citizens of the United States of America

         11  and the citizens of the World.  We do not need to

         12  propogate more harm.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  I have to, I'm

         14  going to have to stop you.

         15                 MS. FLAGG:  Well, other people have

         16  had a little more time.  I'm not speaking from notes

         17  and I think I'm doing a reasonably good job of being

         18  coherent.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Ma'am, out of

         20  respect to the others who have yet to testify before

         21  we clear the room, I would like to give everyone the

         22  opportunity.  So, I had asked you to please

         23  summarize and I've given you more than the two

         24  minutes.

         25                 MS. FLAGG:  My belief is that if we
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          2  do not categorically state that we are against the

          3  war and do not take a position for the greater

          4  common good and recognize the value in working

          5  toward peace for resolutions for our problems, that

          6  we are going to be part of a very serious problem

          7  going foward.

          8                 New York City should be proudly

          9  taking a position of being against the war and

         10  standing for true, true activities that will create

         11  an insurance of security, not only for New York City

         12  but for the World.  And I'd like to promote

         13  democracy in that process, because I think that's

         14  our failing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. STAVIS:  Good Afternoon.  My name

         17  is Alex Stavis.  Thank you for listening to me,

         18  thank you for holding this. I want you to go back

         19  and think about what the Constitution says. If I

         20  remember the Constitution it says that the elected

         21  officials are there to represent the people.  Your

         22  voice now lets go jump forward in time to about

         23  three weeks ago when we had roughly half a million

         24  people out in New York City on the streets who said,

         25  in a peaceful manner also, who said no to this war.
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          2                 If you represent us as you are

          3  supposed to, as we've elected you to, then it's time

          4  that you come out and say no to the war in any way

          5  whatsoever.  We came out on the streets and said,

          6  your representatives, take this message to

          7  Washington, be it with a resolution that says no to

          8  war, whatever.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Before I call

         10  up the final panel, I'd like to allow Council Member

         11  Alan Gerson say a few words.

         12                 MR. GERSON:  Thank you very much, Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 I did not plan to speak at this

         15  point, but I appreciate the opportunity because I

         16  cannot remain silent in view of some of what has

         17  been stated.

         18                 I just need to address the remarks by

         19  the first speaker as the representative of the

         20  District that includes ground zero it is -- the

         21  speaker -- dishonors the memory of Dr. King and

         22  dishonors the labor movement in which I was brought

         23  up by attributing the cause of the attack of 9/11 to

         24  anything other than absolute evil.

         25                 The speaker dishonors and discredits
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          2  the cause by drawing any kind of analogy between the

          3  dictator of Iraq and our President and I speak as a

          4  member of the loyal opposition.

          5                 Mr. Chair, whatever our viewpoints

          6  are, we need to remain united as a City and as a

          7  society in opposition to the unspeakable evil that

          8  was perpetrated.

          9                 I was four blocks away when that

         10  happened.  Now, Mr. Chair, let me also add that the

         11  fact that we have heard opposition to the Council

         12  resolution by, if you will, people on both ends of

         13  the spectrum tells me and demonstrates to me that

         14  this resolution is in fact on target.

         15                 I support the resolution, I want --

         16  this resolution -- expresses the sentiment of the

         17  Council on behalf of the people that we recognize we

         18  must disarm, we cannot allow this dictator to remain

         19  with weapons of mass destruction which he can use

         20  against his own people and the people of the World

         21  indefinitely, but it makes the point, Mr. Chair,

         22  that this City and this Council calls on giving all

         23  means other than an attack every last chance to

         24  work.

         25                 The resolution makes the point that
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          2  all peaceful means and all strategic means and all

          3  diplomatic means should be thoroughly exhausted and

          4  demonstratively exhausted before we take the final

          5   -- any other -- decisive action.  I think that is

          6  appropriate I think it's appropriate for this City

          7  and this Council to demonstrate that we are both a

          8  peace-loving people and a people in opposition to

          9  evil.  The evil specifically of terrorism.

         10                 I congratulate my colleagues who

         11  played a role in drafting this resolution, including

         12  Council Members, especially Council Members Perkins

         13  and Brewer, because I think this resolution makes

         14  that point, that in the memory, is how the speaker

         15  put it, of Dr. King, and if I will, on the tenth

         16  anniversary of the first attack on the World Trade

         17  Center, which was commemorated a few minutes ago,

         18  that war should always be a last resort.

         19                 We must make the statement that we

         20  try every means and we demonstrate to the World that

         21  we've tried every alternative means first and that's

         22  what this resolution calls for and it's important

         23  that the City go on record as clearly and explicitly

         24  as a peace-loving City but it's equally important

         25  that we go on record in recognition of the evil that
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          2  was committed on 9/11, the evil which Saddam Hussein

          3  continues to perpetuate.  And I congratulate this

          4  resolution for going on record on both of those

          5  points.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you,

          7  Council Member.

          8                 Council Member Lew Fidler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I've calmed

         10  down, and I realize that there were two brief points

         11  that I wanted to make earlier that I neglected to.

         12                 The first is that I want to make it

         13  clear that I personally don't question the

         14  patriotism of anyone who has spoken here today,

         15  anyone in this room anymore than -- I know that I

         16  bristled in the years I opposed war in Vietnam, and

         17  the illegal wars in Laos and Cambodia, that anyone

         18  suggested that I didn't love my country, and so

         19  while we disagreed as to our point of view on this

         20  issue, I assume that just as you wouldn't question

         21  my love for the City and Country, I certainly don't

         22  question yours.

         23                 I also neglected to mention that

         24  earlier in this week, one of my colleagues, Council

         25  Member Jackson was dragged over the coals by a paper
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          2  in this City and I think grossly unfairly and I will

          3  repeat this comment on the floor later as well.  I

          4  hope and believe that I have some credibility with

          5  Jewish Organizations throughout this City.  And to

          6  the extent that I have that, I'd like to share it

          7  with Council Member Jackson who doesn't have a

          8  bigoted bone in his body, and I think that the

          9  record should be clear about that and for those

         10  people who don't know him, they ought to know him as

         11  being one of the most decent human beings I know and

         12  everybody should acknowledge that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Council Member.

         15                 I'd like to call up the final panel.

         16                 Agi Groff and Mitchell Cohen.  Please

         17  come forward.  You have two minutes.  Thank you.

         18                 You may begin.

         19                 MR. COHEN:  Hi.  My name is Mitchell

         20  Cohen and I'm the editor of Green Politics which is

         21  the National Newspaper for the Green's Green Party

         22  U.S.A.  It seems like I'm making this my home the

         23  past few days testifying.

         24                 There are several things that I'd

         25  like to see included in any resolution that comes

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  before the City Council, one of which is support for

          3  the hundreds of U.S. soldiers who are, some from New

          4  York City, who are now refusing to allow themselves

          5  to be vaccinated with experimental and genetically

          6  engineered anthrax and small pox vaccines and that

          7  are now in stockades in the United States.  And this

          8  has not made the media yet but there are hundreds

          9  and hundreds of soldiers that are refusing and

         10  they're being tested upon by the pharmaceutical

         11  companies as Guinea Pigs in this huge experiment.

         12                 Second would be a recognition that

         13  every precursor of biological and chemical weapons

         14  said to be in Saddam Hussein's arsenal was sold by

         15  the United States and German corporations to the

         16  Government of Iraq and this includes anthrax,

         17  brucelosous and other chemical and biological agent

         18  precursors, signed by George W. Bush, Senior, Bush

         19  Senior, back in the 1980's, and this has been

         20  exposed in several newspapers in the past few weeks

         21  and Germany and some in the United States.

         22                 Third, I'd like to correct the record

         23  in the resolution itself.  If we're going to have a

         24  resolution, at least it should be based on correct

         25  statements.
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          2                 It says, "whereas, Saddam Hussein

          3  ordered -- although International Weapons Inspectors

          4  who are ordered out of Iraq in 1998 by Saddam

          5  Hussein..." The record clearly shows that they were

          6  not ordered out by Saddam Hussein, they were ordered

          7  out by Richard Butler, who is the head of the arms

          8  inspectors and that should be corrected in the

          9  record.

         10                 Fourth, and I'll finish on this.

         11  Fourth is a recognition of the United States' use of

         12  mass destruction in warfare, including the use of

         13  depleted uranium that has caused -- and the current

         14  use of electrode magnetic pulse weapons that knock

         15  out all electricity in the whole city at a time and

         16  that these weapons are being tested out.  The

         17  depleted uranium has been one of the sources of the

         18  Gulf War syndrome.  It was used for the first time

         19  in a mass way in the Gulf War.  It's been tested out

         20  on people of Vieques now, which is a testing ground

         21  for a lot of this, and it's caused this huge

         22  increase in the rates of leukemia among children in

         23  Iraq and other places where it's been used, and we

         24  can't just ignore that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Can you please
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          2  summarize at this point.

          3                 MR. COHEN:  This is the last

          4  sentence.

          5                 And we cannot ignore the United

          6  States' use of these weapons at the same time that

          7  we condemn and legitimately condemn the other events

          8  that are happening around us that cause us to be

          9  horrified, that our own Government is the leading

         10  culprit, one of the leading culprits of the sale and

         11  promotion of these weapons and the use of it

         12  ourselves and the destruction of the children of

         13  Iraq by the tens and tens of thousands, hundreds of

         14  thousands, if you listen to what the U.N. has to say

         15  about it, due to these weapons is a war crime and

         16  needs to be part of any resolution, recognition of

         17  what has happened to the people of Iraq based on

         18  what our own Government has done.  Thank you.

         19                 MS. GROFF:  Hi.  May name is Agi

         20  Groff and I'm here as a private citizen to oppose

         21  the war on Iraq and I would like to say that I heard

         22  a lot of people throw the word evil around today,

         23  and to me evil is an archaic Biblical term that has

         24  no place in our vocabulary today unless we refer to

         25  evil meaning, and I'm quoting someone and I don't
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          2  know who, but evil means "trying to eradicate

          3  violence through violent means".  That's the true

          4  definition of evil.

          5                 And I would also like to add that

          6  this war is going to be used as a smoke screen for

          7  genocide in Palistine and we must stop this.  No

          8  blood for oil, no blood in the name of erect Israel.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Before I

         11  conclude, I'd like to turn the microphone over to

         12  Council Member Bill Perkins.

         13                 MR. PERKINS:  Again, thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman, for presiding over this hearing and

         15  helping to shepherd us through this process.

         16                 I want to thank all of my colleagues

         17  who are in attendance, whether or not we agree, I

         18  respect their opinions and I would hope that the

         19  public will continue to be as vociferous about your

         20  concerns on this matter as you have been today and

         21  as you have been in the past.

         22                 We especially want to hear from you

         23  when you disagree.  If you think there is something

         24  that should be stronger, say so, as you have.  If

         25  you think there is something that should be weaker,
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          2  say so, and if you like what we got, let us know.

          3  But please, this is a very, very, very important

          4  process for us towards coming to a concensus as to

          5  how we represent the City.  Obviously, we can't

          6  agree with everybody and everything that's said but

          7  we do measure what we do in terms of what we hear

          8  from you and we very much appreciate your

          9  participation in this process.  This is what we are

         10  most proud about.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SERRANO:  Thank you,

         12  Councilman.  I couldn't have said it better myself.

         13                 I'd like to thank everyone who came

         14  here.  I'd like to thank the staff for putting this

         15  together and all the Council Members who joined us

         16  at the hearing. The hearing is concluded.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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